



Gallagher

Insurance | Risk Management | Consulting

HRA / HSA Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

- [1. HRA/HSA – What Are They?](#)
- [2. Can I have other coverage and still contribute?](#)
- [3. Can I contribute to my FSA – if so, full or limited?](#)
- [4. Can I have both an HRA and an HSA?](#)
- [5. Can I have both an HSA and a Post-Employment Savings Plan \(HCSP/ICMA-RC\)?](#)
- [6. How much can I or my employer contribute to either my HRA or HSA?](#)
- [7. Are HSA contributions pre-tax?](#)
- [8. Can I change my HSA contributions throughout the year?](#)
- [9. How do I get money out of my HRA or HSA?](#)
- [10. Can I take money out of my HRA or HSA for non-qualified expenses?](#)
- [11. Can I take money out of my HRA or HSA for anyone other than myself?](#)
- [12. What are considered “qualified expenses?”](#)
- [13. Can I delay enrollment in Medicare so that I can remain HSA-eligible?](#)
- [14. Can I transfer funds from an Individual Retirement Account \(IRA\) to my HSA?](#)
- [15. If I elect the HDHP mid-year, how much can I contribute to my HSA?](#)
- [16. If I have a family status change mid-year and drop the HDHP, what is the maximum amount I can contribute to my HSA?](#)
- [17. If I have family status change and my HDHP coverage changes from single to family coverage, what is the maximum amount I can contribute to my HSA?](#)
- [18. If I have a family status change that changes my HDHP coverage from family to single, what is the maximum amount I can contribute to my HSA?](#)
- [19. What happens to my HSA if I get a job at a new company that doesn’t have an HSA-qualified option?](#)
- [20. What happens to these accounts when I leave my employer?](#)

Acronym Key

- **HRA** – Health Reimbursement Account (also known as a VEBA)
- **VEBA** – Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association
- **HSA** – Health Savings Account
- **FSA** – Flexible Spending Account
- **HDHP** – High Deductible Health Plan
- **HCSP/ICMA-RC** – Post Employment Savings Plan



1. HRA/HSA – What are they?

- HRA's and HSA's are accounts that are funded by either the employer (HRA's) or employee or employer (HSA's) that are used to reimburse the employee for certain qualified expenses.
 - Think of them as savings or checking accounts
 - Balances roll from year to year without the risk of forfeiture (HRAs can if a spend down is allowed)
 - No maximum fund balance
- In order to be eligible for contributions in these accounts, employees must enroll in the employer deductible health plan (HDHP).

Commented [JN1]: Trying to better communicate that it's contributions into the account that have different rules than when you have these accounts and want to take money out of them

2. Can I have other health coverage and still contribute?

- If you are in a **HRA**, your employer can contribute even if you have other coverage.
- If you are in an **HSA**, then you cannot be:
 - Covered by other non-qualified HDHP including traditional health plans, FSA, HRA, or spouse's health and/or FSA plans
 - Enrolled in Medicare
 - Claimed as a dependent on another's tax return
 - Covered under TRICARE

3. Can I contribute to my FSA – if so, full or limited?

- If your employer is contributing to your **HRA**, then you and/or your spouse can have a full FSA for medical, dental and vision. As long as spouse is not contributing to an HSA.
- If you and/or your employer is contributing to your **HSA**, then you and/or your spouse may only enroll in a **limited** FSA (dental and vision and post IRS deductible medical expenses).
 - Spouse's full FSA is considered "other coverage" since the employee is eligible for reimbursement of medical expenses through the spouse's FSA and would make the employee ineligible for HSA contributions.
 - If an employee (or employer) is **not funding the HSA** but the employee chooses to enroll in the HDHP they would be eligible for full FSA provided they do not elect to fund the HSA for the full calendar year.

4. Can I have both a HRA and an HSA?

- You may have balances in both accounts, but you cannot contribute (nor can your employer contribute) to both at the same time.
 - If you have a balance in your **HRA** and are now enrolled in the HDHP/HSA, remember that you will be limited to dental and vision in that HRA.
 - If you have a balance in your **HSA** and are now enrolled in the HDHP/HRA you may use both accounts for all medical, dental and vision expenses.

Commented [SF2]: Some employers may have hybrid HRA/VEBA and HSA so employees could chose to have the employer contribute to and HRA while the employee contributes to an HSA

Commented [JN3R2]: Since the question is "can you have both?" (not "contribute", could this say "Yes, generally you can have both an HRA and HSA" then leave the sub-bullets?

5. Can I have both an HSA and a Post-Employment Savings Plan (HCSP/MissionSquare)?

- You may have balances in both accounts, but you cannot contribute (nor can your employer contribute) to your **HSA** if you are eligible to receive reimbursement from your post-employment savings plan. This usually does not affect active employees unless they are eligible for reimbursement from a prior employer's post-employment savings plan.
 - If you are terminated or retired and wish to continue contributions to your HSA, you will need to waive your ability to receive reimbursements from your post-employment savings

Commented [JN4]: I keep forgetting they changed names, so help me remember if we see ICMA-RC that we change to MissionSquare



plan. (MSRS does indicate in their communications to retirees that if a contribution has been made to an HSA at any time during the calendar year reimbursements must be limited to dental and vision only for the entirety of the calendar year.)

- If you are terminated or retired and no longer contributing to your HSA, you may use balances in both accounts to pay eligible expenses.

6. How much can I or my employer contribute to either my HRA or HSA?

- The Employer establishes the contribution amount for your **HRA**.
- **HSA** limits are set each year by the federal government.
 - 2024 Maximum annual contributions \$4,150/\$8,300
 - 2025 Maximum annual contributions \$4,300/\$8,550
 - Maximums include both employer and employee's \$'s
- **Special HSA catch-up provisions for age 55+:**
 - Annual contributions may be increased by \$1,000

7. Are HSA contributions pre-tax?

- Yes, employer contributions are always pre-taxed.
 - Employees may contribute on a pre-tax basis through payroll deductions.
 - Contributions may be adjusted throughout the year
 - No status change required
 - Employees may also contribute after-tax money directly into their HSA from savings, etc.
 - Dollar for dollar offset on their income tax returns

8. Can I change my HSA contributions throughout the year?

- Yes, you may change your contributions anytime throughout the year with or without a life event or status change.

9. How do I get money out of my HRA or HSA?

- You may request a withdrawal for *qualified expenses only* from your **HRA** by either using your debit card (if applicable) or by submitting a reimbursement request form.
 - Must prove you had an eligible expense at time of reimbursement
 - May be limited as to how long in the future you have to submit a request for reimbursement – usually a year.
- Money may be withdrawn at any time for qualified or non-qualified expenses from your **HSA** by using your debit card. You will not be asked to prove you had a qualified expense at the time of withdrawal, but the IRS may ask you later so keep your receipts!
 - You don't have to take the money out for qualified expenses in the year the expenses were incurred.

Commented [JN5]: I thought I heard that the WEX debit card was finicky about this. I think an employee said that it did charge ALL the target items, not just the one ibuprofen bottle (like apparently the Further card used to do). But then I thought I heard from another employee that their card wasn't working in a place and WEX thought it was because of the coding of the card to only be eligible to be used in places that have eligible expenses. I suppose even if both these things are true, we can't get too into the weeds, so we should leave the statement as is. Sorry, talked myself in a circle there.

10. Can I take money out of my HRA or HSA for non-qualified expenses?

- You **cannot** take money out of your **HRA** for any non-qualified expenses.
- You **can** take money out of your **HSA** for non-qualified expenses, but if you are under age 65 and not disabled you will pay income tax and a 20% penalty.
 - Once you turn 65 or become **disabled**, you can take money out for non-qualified expenses (you will still pay income tax, but no penalty).

Commented [JN6]: Do you think we need to state that the disability qualifies you for Medicare? It's not like someone on STD or LTD can use their HSA for non-qualified expenses. Or is that too in the weeds?



11. Can I take money out of my HRA or HSA for anyone other than myself?

- Generally, yes, you may take money out of your HRA or HSA for you, your spouse and dependents, even if they are not on **your** HDHP. **However**, if you wish to receive reimbursement for qualified expenses for a spouse and dependent from your HRA and they are **not** covered under your employer HDHP then they must be covered by another qualified group health plan.
 - **Be careful with the HSA though, since you can only take money out of your HSA for a dependent, they must be your tax dependent.**

12. What are considered “qualified expenses”?

- For both **HRAs** and **HSAs**, qualified expenses include medical, dental and vision expenses. Same expenses as your FSA. See publication 502 (available at www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/p502.pdf).
- **HRAs** can also reimburse you for insurance premiums once you terminate employment.
- In addition to qualified expenses, **HSA** funds can be used to pay for some insurance premiums:
 - COBRA/Continuation premiums while on the former Employer’s plan
 - Long-term care
 - Medicare (B & D) – *Medicare Supplement premiums are not allowed*

13. Can I delay enrollment in Medicare so that I can remain HSA-eligible?

- Yes. However because of potential ramifications, please seek qualified advice.

14. Can I transfer funds from an Individual Retirement Account (IRA) to my HSA?

- Individuals can make a one-time, tax-free trustee-to-trustee transfer from an IRA to an HSA. The individual must remain enrolled in an HSA-qualified plan and eligible for an HSA for at least the next 12 months following the fund transfer. Note that these transfer amounts **do** count against the statutory contribution limits outlined above.

15. If I elect the HDHP mid-year, how much can I contribute to my HSA?

- If you enroll mid-year, in general your contributions are limited by the 1/12 rule.
 - **Single Coverage:** For each full calendar month of qualified coverage, you may contribute up to 1/12 of the \$4,300 annual limit.
 - **Family Coverage:** For each full calendar month of qualified coverage, you may contribute up to 1/12 of the \$8,550 annual limit.
- However, you can contribute more than is permitted by the 1/12 rule if you stay enrolled for the next year, which is known as the “testing period.” The testing period requires you to maintain the HDHP through the entire month of December of the current tax year and all twelve (12) months of the next tax year. The type of HDHP coverage (single or family) you have on December 1 governs the amount that you can contribute for the year.
 - **Examples:** If enrolled in single coverage on December 1, you may contribute up to \$4,300. If you are enrolled in family coverage on December 1, you may contribute up to \$8,550. In each instance, if you are at least age 55, you can also make a \$1,000 catch up contribution.



- These higher contributions will be taxed and subject to an additional 10% penalty tax if you fail to stay enrolled in the HDHP during the entire testing period. Please see IRS Publication 969 and IRA Form 8889 at www.irs.gov for examples and for a testing period worksheet.

16. If I have a family status change mid-year and drop the HDHP, what is the maximum amount I can contribute to my HSA?

- If you drop the HDHP mid-year, your contributions are limited by the 1/12 rule.
 - **Single Coverage:** For each full month of coverage, you may contribute up to 1/12 of the \$4,300 annual limit, plus 1/12 of any catch-up contribution.
 - **Family Coverage:** For each full month of coverage, you may contribute up to 1/12 of the \$8,550 annual limit, plus 1/12 of any catch-up contribution.

17. If I have a family status change and my HDHP coverage changes from single to family coverage, what is the maximum amount I can contribute to my HSA?

- If your status changes from single to family on or before December, you may make a full family contribution, including any catch-up contribution. If you make your contribution for the full year based on enrollment in family coverage, you will be subject to the testing period described in question 16.

18. If I have a family status change that changes my HDHP coverage from family to single, what is the maximum amount I can contribute to my HSA?

- You are permitted to contribute 1/12th of the family annual maximum for each full month you are covered by a family HDHP, plus 1/12th of the single annual maximum for each full month you are covered by a single HDHP. You may also contribute 1/12 of any catch-up contribution.

19. What happens to my HSA if I get a job at a new employer that doesn't have an HSA-qualified option?

- Your HSA is your money, so it goes with you from job to job. If your new employer has an HSA-qualified HDHP plan and you enroll in that plan, you can continue contributing funds to your existing HSA. If not, you can continue to spend the money in your account to meet your family's expenses tax-free, or use for other non-qualified expenses subject to taxes and penalties. You can also choose to let the money sit in the account until you need it later on in life. You cannot, however, contribute to the account or have contributions made on your behalf if you do not enroll in HSA-qualified HDHP insurance plan.

20. What happens to these accounts when I leave my employer?

- For an **HRA**, the account itself remains with the employer, however employees continue to have access to the funds through a spend-down feature.
- For an **HSA**, the employee owns the account and can keep it with the current administrator/bank or move it to another administrator/bank.



Gallagher

Insurance | Risk Management | Consulting

General

This sample document is for a hypothetical organization and is provided for illustrative purposes only; GBS does not guarantee or warrant its accuracy or applicability to your company's circumstances. It should not be used "as is" for any purposes as it may not apply to your factual situation. Consult your legal counsel if you wish to use this sample as a starting point for your organization.

Coverage Notice

This proposal (analyses, report, etc.) is an outline of the coverages proposed by the carrier(s) based upon the information provided by your company. It does not include all the terms, coverages, exclusions, limitations, and conditions of the actual contract language. See the policies and contracts for actual language. This proposal (analyses, report, etc.) is not a contract and offers no contractual obligation on behalf of GBS.

Legal Notice

The intent of this analysis [report, letter, etc.] is to provide you with general information regarding the status of, and/or potential concerns related to, your current employee benefits environment. It should not be construed as, nor is it intended to provide, legal advice. Laws may be complex and subject to change. This information is based on current interpretation of the law and is not guaranteed. Questions regarding specific issues should be addressed by legal counsel who specializes in this practice area.

Consulting and insurance brokerage services to be provided by Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. and/or its affiliate Gallagher Benefit Services (Canada) Group Inc. Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc., a non-investment firm and subsidiary of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., is a licensed insurance agency that does business in California as "Gallagher Benefit Services of California Insurance Services" and in Massachusetts as "Gallagher Benefit Insurance Services." Investment advisory services and corresponding named fiduciary services may be offered through Gallagher Fiduciary Advisors, LLC, a Registered Investment Adviser. Gallagher Fiduciary Advisors, LLC is a single-member, limited-liability company, with Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. as its single member. Certain appropriately licensed individuals of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. subsidiaries or affiliates, excluding Gallagher Fiduciary Advisors, LLC, offer securities through Kestra Investment Services (Kestra IS), member FINRA/SIPC and or investment advisory services through Kestra Advisory Services (Kestra AS), an affiliate of Kestra IS. Neither Kestra IS nor Kestra AS is affiliated with Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. or Gallagher Fiduciary Advisors, LLC. Neither Kestra AS, Kestra IS, Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., nor their affiliates provide accounting, legal, or tax advice.